
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 

PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD 

MEETING AGENDA 

Thursday ~ February 18, 2016 

 
Chair Dennis Lipp 

Vice- Chair Robin Crawford 

Board Member Lawrence Corning 

Board Member Grace Joyce 

Board Member Veronica Close 

Alternate Karen Piesley 

Alternate Joyce Batcheler 







 
 

 
 

MEETING MINUTES 

 
Chair Dennis Lipp                Town Manager William F. Underwood, II 
Vice-Chair Robin Crawford                Town Clerk Virginia Walton   
Board Member Lawrence Corning   Town Planning Consultant Jim Fleischmann  
Board Member Grace Joyce                
Board Member Veronica Close  
Alternate Member #1 Karen Piesley                       
Alternate Member #2 Joyce Batcheler 
 
AGENDA 

1. OPENING 
 

a. Call to Order & Roll Call 
 
 Chair Dennis Lipp called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m. Present were Vice Chair 
Robin Crawford, Board Members Grace Joyce, Veronica Close and Alternate Member Karen 
Piesley.  Alternate Member Joyce Batchelor was absent.  
 
Staff Present: Town Manager Bill Underwood, Town Planning Consultant Jim Fleischmann and 
Town Clerk Virginia Walton. 
 

b. Approval of Agenda 
 

Page 2 of 4 in the minutes was corrected to stated “Board Member Joyce” rather than 
Board Member Grace.  Board Member Joyce asked the Clerk to check the video regarding her 
comment on RV’s as she felt the comment as written was not exactly what her comment was. 
Board Member Close stated she was not present at the last meeting and had two questions from 
page 3 and page 4 of the minutes.  Her questions were responded to by Manager Underwood. 
 
Motion:  a motion to approve the agenda was made by Board Member Close and seconded by 
Vice Chair Crawford.   Motion passed 5 – 0.  

 
2.   MINUTES – November 12, 2015 
 
Motion:  a motion to approve the minutes, as discussed, was made by Board Member Close and 
seconded by Board Member Joyce.  Motion passed 5 – 0. 

Town of Loxahatchee Groves 
Planning & Zoning Board 

Thursday, January 15, 2016, at 7:00 p.m. 
 



PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD MINUTES – January 15, 2016 
 

Page 2 of 4 
 

(Public Comment will be permitted on agenda items prior to P&Z vote) 
 

3.  OLD BUSINESS – none 
  
 
4.   NEW BUSINESS:   
 
   a. Palms West Plaza Site Plan Amendment Application SP(A) 2016-01 
 
 Town Planning Consultant Fleischmann advised the Board that this was an unusual 
project and a little different than the usual site plan amendments.  There was an existing plaza 
that had been approved by Palm Beach County prior to 1988.  There had been amendments to 
that plan, with conditions that needed to be discussed/revised/deleted, since some were 
conflicting. Then new conditions would be incorporated for this amendment.  Mr. Fleischmann 
suggested this meeting be used as a workshop to give the Applicant direction, then come back in 
March for formal approval.   
 

Board Member Close requested that future site plans should come with a full size hard 
copy of the plans to make review easier. Suggestion was duly noted.   

 
The Board questioned the hash marks on the original plan.  Richard Donafrio, with WGI 

on behalf of the Applicant, stated  the “green” were buildings proposed but never built, and the 
“blue” was the post office.  There were existing right and left turns onto Southern and the 
Applicant was requesting an additional one onto Tangerine.  The Board’s largest concern was the 
existing old oak trees that would be taken down based on the present expansion layout.  The 
Board felt strongly that these old trees should be preserved and lengthy discussion between the 
Board and the Applicants took place on ideas for restructuring the layout of the buildings in 
order to preserve the trees.   

 
In reviewing all the conditions in Attachment E2 (PBC Resolution R-1643 Zoning & 

Special Exception), the following comments were made: 
 
1) R/O/W on SR80 has already been taken care of with expansion plans 
2) This condition will go away when Southern is widened 
3) Main access road – would need DOT authorization 
4)  These also would need to rely on DOT comments 
5) These also would need to rely on DOT comments 
6) Comprehensive drainage report – has submitted statement but need more detailed 

paving & drainage information 
7) Fair Share Contribution for Road Improvements – the figures listed are old and they 

needed to be revised 
8) This condition should remain 
9) Maintain Tangerine perpetually – the new plans show two 30ft easements.  There was 

a lot of discussion on what “maintain” meant.  Town Engineer had recommended 
paving the road, but the Attorney had concerns.   After discussion, consensus of 
Board was to allow access to Tangerine. 

 
 



PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD MINUTES – January 15, 2016 
 

Page 3 of 4 
 

SPECIAL EXCEPTION CONDITIONS: 
 
1) This condition would be deleted and added to new conditions 
2) Parallel parking would be min. of 22 feet in length – suggestion was made to reduce 

one space (250sf) and save the tree located in this section. 
3) Unity of Title – Board felt this should have been done already.  Mr. Fleischmann 

stated he would talk to the Attorney. 
4) through 7) Conditions should remain 
8)   No further clearing shall take place on site – this would need to be amended.  Mr. 
Fleischmann stated he was inclined to recommend deleting this condition. 
9)  Generation & disposal of hazardous effluents – this condition needed to be updated 

          10)  This condition was included in the developer’s agreement and could be deleted 
          11)  Sewers – this condition should be deleted 
          12)  This condition had already been deleted in previous amendment 
          13)  Another reference to “Fair Share Contribution” – needed to be updated 
          14)  Stormwater runoff – this should be in line with current standards 
          15)  No access to Tangerine – this should be deleted 
          16)  Contribution to PBC Roadway Improvement Plan – amounts need to be updated 

 17) Traffic Study – Applicant had a current PBC TPS Letter which did not expire until 
2/21/2019 

 18)  Min. of gross leasable area for office space – this should be deleted 
 19)  Florida DOT plan for SR80 – this should be deleted since Applicant cannot revise 

DOT plans 
 20) through 23) Conditions should remain 

 
5. COMMENTS FROM THE MEMBERS 
 
 Chair Dennis Lipp stated the issue of traffic on Tangerine could be mitigated with a 
Traffic Light at D Road and Southern.  Mr. Fleischmann responded that DOT had denied this 
request. 
 
 Board Member Veronica Close stated the architectural design of the long building might 
look better if they broke up the massing a bit.  It looked like horse stalls. 
 
 The Applicant asked if there was a guideline for the color scheme – the same or different 
colors for each building.  Mr. Fleischmann referred to the Day Property recently built as a good 
reference.   
 
 The Board then discussed “rural vista” guidelines.  Mr. Fleischmann responded that 
guidelines had been designed as part of the Okeechobee Boulevard overlay; however, the 
Council had tabled that for now.  The Board suggested that the rural vista portion should be 
extracted and moved forward with separately. 
 
Motion: a motion to request the Council extract the “rural vista” portion of the Okeechobee 
Overlay ordinance and move forward with a separate ordinance was made by Board Member 
Close and seconded by Board Member Corning.  Motion passed 5 – 0.  
 



PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD MINUTES – January 15, 2016 
 

Page 4 of 4 
 

 Mr. Donafrio thanked the Board for their comments and they would return with an 
alternate plan that hopefully would save as many of the old trees as possible. 
 
  
6. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 Having no further business and hearing no further comments, the meeting was adjourned at 
9:33 pm.  
 
The next Planning and Zoning Board Meeting is to be determined. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
























































































